
Page 1 

 

 
 
 

AGENDA  
 
Meeting: Electoral Review Committee 

Place: The Kennet Room, County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, BA14 
8JN 

Date: Thursday 31 October 2019 

Time: 12.30 pm 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Kieran Elliott, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 718504 or email 
kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
Membership: 
 

Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling 
Cllr Clare Cape 
Cllr Richard Clewer (Chairman) 
Cllr Gavin Grant (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr Ian McLennan 

Cllr Christopher Newbury 
Cllr Ashley O'Neill 
Cllr Jonathon Seed 
Cllr Stuart Wheeler 
Cllr Graham Wright 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 

Cllr Peter Fuller 
Cllr Ruth Hopkinson 
Cllr Nick Murry 

 

 

Cllr Jacqui Lay 
Cllr Ricky Rogers 
Cllr Ian Thorn 

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2 

 

Recording and Broadcasting Information 
 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 

Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv.  At the start of the meeting, the 

Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 

sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council. 

 

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 

those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes. 

 

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public. 

  

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 

Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 

from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 

accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 

relation to any such claims or liabilities. 

 

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here .   
 

Parking 
 

To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most 
meetings will be held are as follows: 
 
County Hall, Trowbridge 
Bourne Hill, Salisbury 
Monkton Park, Chippenham 
 
County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for 
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your 
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more 
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer, 
who will arrange for your stay to be extended. 
 

Public Participation 
 

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of 
questions and statements for this meeting. 
 
For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and 
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution. 
 
The full constitution can be found at this link.  
 
For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for 

details 

http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=14031
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/parkingtransportandstreets/carparking/findacarpark.htm?area=Trowbridge
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s153103/Part04RulesofProcedure.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13386&path=0


Page 3 

 

AGENDA 

                                                      Part I  

 Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public 

1   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting. 

2   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 8) 

 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 21 October 2019. 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee. 

4   Chairman's Announcements  

 To reecive any announcements through the Chair. 

5   Public Participation  

 Statements 
If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this 
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to 
3speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item. 
 
Please contact the officer named on the front of the agenda for any further 
clarification. 
 
Questions 
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council 
received in accordance with the constitution. 
 
Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such 
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than 
5pm on 24 October 2019 in order to be guaranteed of a written response. In 
order to receive a verbal response questions must be submitted no later than 
5pm on 29 October 2019. Please contact the officer named on the front of this 
agenda for further advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the 
Chairman decides that the matter is urgent. 
 
Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website. 

6   Community Governance Reviews  

 To consider the terms of reference for a Community Governance Review. To 
follow 
 



Page 4 

 

7  Date of the Next Meeting  

 To confirm the date of the next scheduled meeting. 

8  Urgent Items  

 Any other items of business which the Chairman agrees to consider as a matter 
of urgency. 

 Part II  

 Items during consideration of which it is recommended that the public should be 
excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be disclosed. 



 
 
 

 
 
 

ELECTORAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES OF THE ELECTORAL REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 21 
OCTOBER 2019 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 
8JN. 
 
Present: 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Richard Clewer (Chairman), Cllr Gavin Grant (Vice-
Chairman), Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr Ashley O'Neill, Cllr Jonathon Seed, 
Cllr Stuart Wheeler and Cllr Graham Wright 
  

 
9 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies. 
 

10 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 23 July 2019 were presented for 
consideration and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign the minutes as a true and correct record. 
 

11 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

12 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 

13 Public Participation 
 
There were no questions or statements submitted. 
 

14 Electoral Review of Wiltshire Council 
 
Following receipt of final representations during a further limited consultation, 
the Local Government Boundary Commission for England had published its 
Final Recommendations for new Unitary Divisions for Wiltshire Council. These 
would be laid before Parliament and come into effect at the next elections in 
May 2021, along with consequential changes to many town and parish 
boundaries. 
 
The Chairman noted the outcome of the Final Recommendations, which had 
accepted the council’s submissions in respect of some areas, but retained what 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 

 
 
 

the council considered to be suboptimal divisions in others, particularly relating 
to the splitting of Idmiston between two divisions, however noted that the 
process was not at its end. 
 
The Chairman thanked all the Committee and its supporting officers for the 
huge amount of work that had gone into preparing the various submissions the 
council had made over the course of the electoral review, and noted the 
conclusion of the process. 
 

15 Polling District and Polling Place Review 2019 
 
At its meeting on 8 July 2019 the Committee received a report on the outcome 
of a preliminary review on polling districts and polling places which was required 
to be completed by 1 January 2020, and resolved to publish a notice of the 
holding of a review, the representation of the Acting Returning Officer(ARO), 
and launch a public consultation on that information. That consultation ran from 
12 July 2019 to 9 September 2019 and included communication with key 
stakeholders. 
 
74 responses were received during the consultation, including 19 in relation to 
the use of Redland School as a polling station. It was reported that due to the 
impact of the Electoral Review of Wiltshire Council by the Local Government 
Boundary Commission for England, which would significantly impact many 
polling districts and any solutions to concerns raised during the consultation, it 
was proposed there be minimal alternations to current arrangements, as there 
would be a further review in 2020. 
 
The Committee considered the report, which recommended 5 issues be 
reviewed during the 2020 review as a result of unitary changes, 9 changes to a 
different established polling venue, and 8 changes to designate a polling place 
as the polling district, and for the ARO to investigate suitability and availability of 
alternatives and consider the cost and sites for temporary polling stations. It 
was noted that in event of an unscheduled election, such sites as could be 
available at short notice might have to be used even if planned to be adjusted in 
future. 
 
The Committee also noted a few specific areas where it felt further work should 
be undertaken to identify suitable alternative venues, such as in the east of 
Melksham where electors presently must travel a long distance, past other 
stations, to reach allocated stations. It was also confirmed the 2020 review, and 
changes to districts as a result of unitary changes, would enable elimination of 
anomalous polling districts. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree the draft recommendations as set out in the appendices and 
recommend approval by Full Council at its next meeting. 
 

Page 6



 
 
 

 
 
 

16 Date of the Next Meeting and Future Work Programme 
 
The Committee received a report setting a proposed forward work programme 
for the next several years, taking into account the confirmation by Full Council 
that it be a standing committee as part of the council’s governance 
arrangements. It was proposed that the Committee receive reports and make 
recommendations or decisions in relation to Electoral Services matters, and that 
a schedule of work be undertaken for long term review of parish governance 
arrangements, as well as monitoring variance of Unitary Divisions to prevent the 
need for a whole council review if possible in the future. 
 
It was also proposed that Polling District and Polling Place Review decisions be 
delegated to the Committee, as these were a highly technical process and could 
be undertaken on an annual basis. All unitary members would be kept informed 
of any review or proposed decisions. 
 
The date of the next meeting was also confirmed as 31 October 2019. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the initial Forward Work Programme of the Electoral Review 
Committee detailed at Appendix B; and, 
 
To recommend Full Council amend the Terms of Reference of the 
Electoral Review Committee to the following: 
 
2.10.11 To make decisions in respect of proposed Polling District and 
Polling Places Reviews. 
 
2.10.12 To receive reports in relation to the operation and delivery of 
Electoral Services, and make recommendations or decisions as 
appropriate on Electoral matters not reserved to Full Council. 
 

17 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 
 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  1400 – 1430 ) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 

direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes


